

Information Packet For Prospective Board Members

October 2019

Contact information: Association of Oregon Recyclers PO Box 1264 Tualatin, OR 97062 (503) 233-3056 www.oregonrecyclers.org

AOR Vision, Mission & History	. 3
AOR Vision	. 3
AOR Mission	. 3
About AOR	. 3
Organizational Structure	.4
Board of Directors	.4
Staff	.4
Volunteers	.4
Board Job Description & Responsibilities	.6
Board Officer Responsibilities	.6
Executive Board Officers	.6
Board Position Descriptions	7
Bylaws of Association of Oregon Recyclers	.7



AOR Vision, Mission & History

AOR Vision

The Association of Oregon Recyclers is committed to achieving a system of sustainable materials management by supporting high-quality recycling and composting, thoughtful consumption, and producer responsibility.

AOR Mission

AOR provides value to its members by hosting educational events, delivering publications to enhance our understanding and connections to diverse perspectives, and lobbying for legislation that supports sustainable materials management.

About AOR

The Association of Oregon Recyclers (AOR) was formed in 1977 to support the fledgling recycling industry and promote recycling in the state of Oregon. AOR provides a forum for discussing recycling issues at a level that reflects the deep pool of membership expertise. Our nonprofit 501(c)6 allows us to influence government policy. We encourage education and growth through newsletters, forums, tours, annual conferences and award presentations. AOR members encompass a diverse group of city, county and state government staff; non-profit organizations; representatives from recycling and solid waste companies; compost processors; reuse organizations; colleges and universities; and private citizens. With over 500 members, AOR continues to set the industry standard for encouraging sustainable legislative initiatives and awareness.

AOR welcomes all Oregonians regardless of race, color, religion (creed), gender, gender expression, age, national origin (ancestry), disability, marital status, sexual orientation, or military status, in any of its activities or operations. We are committed to providing an inclusive and welcoming environment for all members of our staff, committee members, event participants, volunteers, contractors, exhibitors and all Oregonians. AOR values the well-being of all Oregonians and supports the conditions upon where we work and live that result in health and happiness.

Organizational Structure

AOR is a 501c6 corporation and operated per adopted bylaws. Membership is open to any individual, business, or government entity participating in the development or implementation of solid waste, recycling, and/or related programs, or committed to furthering sustainable materials management in Oregon. An annual membership meeting is held each year in June during the annual conference.

Board of Directors

An 11-member Board of Directors, elected by membership for two-year terms, governs the association. Board meetings are held monthly, at various locations in the Portland area with video-conferencing or call-in options available for those board members unable to attend in person. A planning retreat is held each July. Board members are actively engaged in the work of the association. Board members are expected to actively participate in all aspects of the organization.

Staff

AOR contracts with an independent consultant to assist the board and facilitate committee activities. The consultant is responsible for AOR's day to day operations and specialized work such as events, communications, membership and financial management. AOR also contracts with a conference planner to manage conference activities and a lobbyist to support our legislative activities. All staff work in their respective home offices.

Volunteers

AOR has several committees to assist the Board and Staff with various AOR events and activities. These volunteers are members of the Association and are organized into multiple working committees. Committees are led by a chair or co-chairs and supported by staff. Committees meet quarterly, monthly, or bi-monthly depending upon need. Participation on committees by members is strongly desired and encouraged.

Conference Committee

The conference committee develops a variety of aspects of the annual conference including sessions, tours and activities, and the silent auction. The group starts meeting in the fall and continues meeting until spring, and committee members spend a few hours in between each meeting working on their tasks.

Events Committee

Formerly the education committee, the events committee helps us to grow our recycling education programs throughout the state by sharing resources, compiling information, and

promoting recycling through events around the state, and currently supports our Recycling 101 course.

Fundraising Committee

The fundraising committee focuses on activities to help raise revenue to support AOR programs and scholarships to AOR events.

Legislative Committee

AOR's legislative committee provides a forum for members to discuss materials managementrelated legislation and provide feedback and make recommendations to the AOR Board to support, protest or remain neutral on bills introduced to the Oregon Legislature. The group includes 11 members that represent the overall demographics of AOR's members. The committee charter can be found <u>here</u>.

Marketing Committee

AOR's marketing committee works to promote AOR, it's mission, vision, and events.

Membership Committee

The membership committee helps develop and implement AOR's member recruitment and retention strategy.

Board Officer Job Description & Responsibilities

The AOR Board of Officers are responsible for the governance of AOR. As a board officer, you will make a significant commitment of resources (time, money, expertise, community contacts, organizational skills and/or leadership talents) to advance the mission and goals of the association.

The following responsibilities for AOR officers and board members represent the minimum members will promise to carry out during their two-year terms.

Board Member Responsibilities:

- Attend and participate in monthly board meetings (2 hours, via in-person participation or video conference call) & amp; annual board retreat (in-person attendance, usually 1 full day in the Portland metro area)
- Volunteer at least 8 12 hours per month on AOR activities (non-compensated, which includes board meeting participation)
- Board members are expected to attend the annual conference, and attendance at Forums and other events is very strongly encouraged
- > Participate in at least one committee and assist with responsibilities of that committee
- > Actively work to help AOR work towards our strategic goal(s) for the year
- > Assist with conference sponsorship solicitations and other fundraising activities.
- Recruit new AOR members, committee members, and board nominees
- Represent the AOR at special events as requested by the Board of Directors/Staff

Executive Board Officers

The AOR executive officers consist of the Board Chair, Past Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer. These positions are elected by the membership for two-year terms.

	Past Chair	Chair	Treasurer	Conference	Marketing	Member/EDI	Fundraising	Education	Markets	Legislation	Secretary
Current	Pete Chism-	Ali Briggs-Ungerer	Laura Leebrick	Kristin Leichner	Joel Schoening	Jennifer Stefanick	Alex Bertolucci	Gregg Hayward	Vinod Singh	Rosalynn Greene	VACANT
current	Winfield	All Diggs-Oligerei		Kristin Leichnei	Joer Schoening	Jenniner Steranick	Alex bertoldeel	Gregg Hayward	VITIOU SINGI	Rosalynn Greene	VACANI
Term/Expiration	n/a	1/2020	2/2021	1/2020	1/2020	1/2020	2/2021	2/2021	3/2021	1/2021	n/a
Bylaws	None	Presides at all meetings of the members and the board. Sign for contracts and official documents. Organize and delegate planning and implementation of all forums, tours	Keeping current records showing members and their addresses, maintaining financial records, planning budget reports.	Organize and chair a committee of association members concerning the planning and implementation of the annual conference.	Assist AOR staff in planning, developing and implementing a marketing strategy. The Marketing Chair will collaborate with Conference Chair to support the annual conference.	Develop and coordinate communication with members including presenting feedback to the Board. Develop strategies for recruitment and retention of members.	Raises funds to support the services provided to its members. Chair a committee and collaborate with the Treasurer to develop the annual budget.	Support the maintenance and development of public education and outreach. May require the development and coordination of a committee.	Make connections with local and global recycling markets and provide that information to the membership.	Act as the liaison with the AOR lobbyist, organize and chair a committee of association members concerning legislative matters.	Keep a record of meetings; serve notice of the meetings of the board and the members.
Written Descriptions	Serve as Vice- Chair. Act as AOR Board liaison to other boards, organizations, etc.	and trainings. Lead meetings. Guide Board and track project progress. Prioritize strategic plan. Coordinate with Resource Director. Organize retreat. Develop partnerships. Primary contact for AOR business. Manage contracts. Monitor and amendment bylaws. Organize and lead Board session and Annual Meeting and Elections.	Prepare the annual budget. Maintain records, review bank statements. Present financial report to the Board. Schedule third party audit. Prepare report each year comparing forecasts against actuals. Review contracts regarding financial implications. Review and approve all tax filings. No	Oversee project management aspects of the conference: finalizing all speakers, collaborating with Conference Planner and Resource Director regarding conference planning timeline and logistics, prepare a conference budget, support outreach	Direct a marketing strategy to: increase participation in events, programs; develop and implement support materials; support coordination of the appearance of all AOR materials such. Work with Resource Director on communications strategy	Identify and recruit potential AOR members at events. Maintain relationships with regional liaisons. Support outreach efforts at events. Report to the Board about membership.	Develop fundraising strategy that includes: work with Treasurer and board to establish goals; work to develop events, solicitations (sponsorships) and other fundraising channels; work to promote events; monitor efforts to ensure ethics and recognition; chair a committee.	Plan "On the Road with AOR" events. Assist with special projects. Review and update Recycling 101 content every three years.	Provide regular recycling market reports to the Board and general membership. Develop, coordinate and implement Forums.	Serve as liaison between lobbyist and Board. Keep the AOR Board informed about relevant legislation. Identify issues that AOR may wish to see become legislation.	Keep a complete record of all meetings of the association and the board of officers. Prepare an annua report. Manage nominations for Recycler of the Year awards. Manage social media. Serve notice of the meetings of the board of officers and of the members.
Responsibility Change in Responsibilities	Advise and lead EDI efforts including partnership development, training for board.	None.	None.	Lead content development for conference. Reduce work in marketing and logistics.	Lead marketing for conference and advise on events. Develop FB ready testimonials.	Lead Master Recycler membership drive.	None.	Serve as liaison for R101.	Serve as liaison to markets. Recruit markets as members and participants in events.	None.	Leads event planning committee.

Association of Oregon Recyclers Bylaws Revised 6/8/2017

As members of an organization, hereafter called Association of Oregon Recyclers is committed to achieving a system of sustainable materials management by supporting high-quality recycling and composting, thoughtful consumption and producer responsibility.

AOR welcomes all Oregonians regardless of race, color, religion (creed), gender, gender expression, age, national origin (ancestry), disability, marital status, sexual orientation, or military status, in any of its activities or operations.

We are committed to providing an inclusive and welcoming environment for all members of our staff, committee members, event participants, volunteers, contractors, exhibitors and all Oregonians.

AOR values the well-being of all Oregonians and supports the conditions upon where we work and live that result in health and happiness.

Therefore, we preface our organizational guidelines with the conviction that we must work together in harmony toward an environmentally and socially just Oregon.

Article I. Membership

1.1 Qualifications for Membership.

A. Individual member (Voting) - Persons who complete a membership application and provide the appropriate dues shall be a voting member of the association and shall have their name and address recorded by the secretary or by another person appointed to maintain membership information. Individual members are eligible for the board of officers, and Individual membership shall be valid between annual meetings. Individuals aged 62 or older are eligible for a discount for individual membership.

B. Organizational Member (Voting) - Groups or corporations who complete a membership application and provide the appropriate dues shall be a voting member of the association and shall have their name and address recorded by the secretary or by another person appointed to maintain membership information. Each group or corporation which is an organization member shall select a representative (and an alternate) to place their vote. Organization member representatives shall be eligible for the board of officers, and organization membership shall be valid between annual meetings.

C. Student Member (Non-Voting) - Students enrolled in any accredited school, college or university are eligible for free membership Student members will not be eligible voting members of the association or be eligible to run for any election. Student members shall have their name and address recorded by the secretary or by another person appointed to maintain membership information. Article II. Meetings of Members

2.1 Annual Meeting. The annual meeting of members shall be held at the same place, date and time as the Association of Oregon Recyclers, Inc. annual conference unless otherwise prescribed by the board of officers.

2.2 Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the Chair or by the board of officers or upon written request of members entitled to cast 20 percent of the total votes.

2.3 Notice. Notice of all meetings of voting members shall be mailed or e-mailed by, or at the direction of, the secretary, to every member at the address as shown in the records of the association. Such notice shall be so delivered not less than ten days, nor more than thirty days prior to the date of such meeting. The notice of the meeting shall specify the place, date, and time of the meeting and in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting.

2.4 Quorum. A quorum for any meeting of the voting members shall be members entitled to cast 20 percent of total votes, except for matters set forth below.

2.5 Special Quorum Requirements. The presence at any meeting, in person or by proxy, of those members entitled to cast 35 percent of total votes shall constitute a quorum for voting on the following matters: amendment to the articles of the association, merger and consolidation, voluntary dissolution, sale, lease or other disposition, but not mortgage, of all or substantially all of the property and assets of the association.

2.6 Proxy. Any member may vote in person or by proxy. Each proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically terminate upon termination of membership.

2.7 Objections. Any procedural or other objection to actions taken at membership meetings must be made in writing to the Chair within 60 days of the membership meeting.

Article III. Voting Policy

3.1 Nominations.

A. Written notice of the election date and eligibility requirements shall be mailed or emailed to every member at least two months prior to the election date. The location and time of the election will be mailed or emailed to every member, at least one month prior to the election.

B. At the board's discretion, a nomination committee may be appointed to solicit and secure a slate of qualified nominees. Eligible members may also submit their names in nomination.

C. At the beginning of the election meeting, the current chair or a member chosen by the chair will accept nominations from the floor. This will be done by announcing the

position, naming the current nominees and calling for further nominations. No individual can be a nominee for more than one position. If nominated for more than one position, a member must choose which nomination to accept.

3.2 Nominee Information.

A. Nominees may submit materials to the newsletter editor so that they may be published in the newsletter issue immediately prior to the election date. The format of nominee materials may be set by the conference committee. Nominees may be asked to state their qualifications, experience, affiliation and interest in serving on the board.

B. All candidates will be provided an opportunity to submit for duplication by the Association a "Statement of Qualification." Those statements received by the newsletter editor at least 5 days before the election date will be made available at the registration desk on election day. Copies of these statements can be obtained by members prior to the meeting by contacting the editor.

C. Candidates who do not submit their statements by the deadline are responsible for bringing multiple copies to the election meeting. One copy should be submitted to the secretary for the Association's records.

3.3 Voting Requirements.

A. Anyone wishing to vote must be a current member [with voting privileges,] having paid annual dues. There are no exceptions.

B. Prior to the meeting or at the registration table set up at least one hour before the meeting opens, voting members may obtain an official ballot card. The treasurer or a person or entity selected by the board shall be responsible for insuring that only paid members receive ballot cards.

C. Each Organization member gets two votes and shall select a representative and an alternate to place the organization's vote (as described in Section 1.1B of the bylaws). Each Individual member gets one vote. Student and Senior members are not eligible to vote.

3.4 Voting System.

A. After all nominations have been accepted at the election meeting, each nominee shall have an opportunity to make a brief statement, and members shall have any opportunity to ask them brief questions. The chair may set time limits for this session. If the chair is a candidate, the proceedings should be conducted by a non-candidate member selected by the chair. The chair or another person chosen to conduct the proceedings will then read the official candidates for each office, and allow time for members to write their choices on their ballot card. After all votes are cast, the cards

will be collected and tallied independently by two non-candidates selected by the chair. The new officers will be announced following the official count.

B. Copies of this voting policy shall be available to members.

ARTICLE IV. Board of Officers

4.1 Number. The affairs of this association shall be managed by a non-paid board of officers consisting of no fewer than nine and no greater than 15 voting members. There shall always be an odd number of elected officers.

4.2 Qualification of Officers. Any voting member of the association is eligible to be an officer.

4.3 Selection of Officers. The officers shall be elected from the voting membership of the association. A majority vote is required.

4.4 Term of Office of Officers. Each officer shall serve a term of two years from the date of their election until the date their successors are elected and assume office. Officers are eligible to be re-elected for three consecutive two year terms. Begin and end dates of each officer's term shall be structured such that in any given year there shall be approximately equal number of officers with one year remaining, and with two years remaining, in their terms.

4.5 Vacancies. In the event of removal, death or resignation of an officer, the successor shall be elected by a majority vote of the remaining officers and shall serve out the remainder of the previous officer's term. Any office to be filled by reason of an increase in the number of officers as a result of changes to the by-laws shall be filled by a vote of the Board, in accordance with section 5.4.

4.6 Representation. Officers shall represent the membership. Officers shall seek to represent the membership's diversity respective of geographic location, industry specialization, gender, race and professional leadership level.

ARTICLE V. Meetings of the Board of Officers

5.1 Regular Meeting. Within 45 days after each annual meeting, the officers shall hold an organizational meeting. If all officers are present at the time and place of the annual meeting, no prior notice of a board meeting shall be required to be given to the officers. The board of officers may, by resolution, establish the date, time and place for other regular meetings of the board.

5.2 Special Meetings. Special meetings may be called by the Chair and shall be called by him or her at the request of at least four officers. Such special meetings may be held at such time and place as the Chair shall determine, and any business may be transacted at such meetings.

5.3 Notice of Meeting. Except as otherwise herein specifically provided, notice to officers of regular and special meetings shall be given at least 48 hours prior to the date of such meeting either personally, by mail, electronic mail, or telephone.

5.4 Quorum. A majority of the officers is required to constitute a quorum, but no action of the officers shall be valid unless it is approved by affirmative vote of at least a majority of the elected officers.

5.5 Action without a Meeting. Officers may take any action, in the absence of a meeting, which they could take at a meeting, by a telephone or electronic mail vote of all of the officers then in office, to such action. Any action so taken shall have the same effect as if taken at a regular meeting of the officers and will be noted in the minutes of the next regular meeting.

ARTICLE VI.

Powers and Duties of the Board of Officers

6.1 General Powers of the Board of Officers. The board of officers shall have the power to:

A. Adopt and publish rules and regulations defining the objectives and direction of the association.

B. Exercise for the association all powers, duties, and authorities vested in, or delegated to, the association.

C. To employ a manager or other employees and officials, prescribe their duties and fix their compensation.

6.2 Duties of the Board of Officers. It shall be the duty of the board of officers to cause to be kept a record of all business and proceedings of its meetings. A report reviewing the business and affairs of the association for the year shall be prepared by the Treasurer and the Secretary or a person or entity selected by the board. Copies shall be available for inspection at the association office and available upon request.

ARTICLE VII. Officers

7.1 Officers. The officers of this association shall be a Chair, a Secretary, a Treasurer, and a chair for each of the following committees: Legislative, Education, Markets, Membership Development, and Conference. The officers of this association shall also include At-Large Officers, who maintain a seat and vote, but are not assigned to a chair a committee. The At-Large Officers will include a seat for Immediate Past Chair.

7.2 Removal Any member of the board of officers may be removed from the board with cause by a unanimous vote of the other members of the board. The vacant seat shall be filled in accordance with section 4.5 of these by-laws. 7.3 Board Chair. The Board Chair shall preside at all meetings of the members of the association and the board of officers. He or she shall sign for the association such contracts and other documents as he or she may be authorized by the board to sign and shall perform all acts and duties usually performed by a chair or as prescribed by the board. The Board Chair shall organize and delegate planning and implementation of all AOR forums, tours and trainings.

7.4 Secretary. The Secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, a complete record of all meetings of the association and the board of officers; serve notice of the meetings of the board of officers and of the members; and perform other duties as may be required by the board. The assistant secretary may be authorized by the board to perform the duties of the secretary.

7.5 Treasurer. The Treasurer shall be responsible for keeping appropriate current records showing members and their addresses, maintaining financial records of the association, planning the annual budget and making such reports and performing such other duties as may be required by the board.

7.6 Legislative Chair. The Legislative Chair shall act as the liaison with the AOR lobbyist, organize and chair a committee of association members concerning governmental and legislative matters.

7.7 Education Chair. The Education Chair shall support the maintenance and development of state-wide public education and outreach efforts. This may require the development and coordination of an education committee.

7.8 Markets Chair. The Markets Chair shall make connections with local and global recycling markets and provide that information to the membership.

7.9 Membership Development Chair. The Membership Development Chair shall develop and coordinate efforts to maintain quality communication with members. Membership input will be gathered and presented to the Board. Membership Development Chair shall also develop strategies for recruitment and retention of association members.

7.10 Conference Chair. The Conference Chair shall organize and chair a committee of association members concerning the planning and implementation of the annual conference.

7.11 Fundraising Chair: The Fundraising Chair assumes oversight and stewardship of raising funds for the association to support, and expand on, the services provided to its members. The Fundraising Chair will chair a committee in performing these duties and collaborate with the Treasurer to develop the annual budget.

7.12 Marketing Chair: The Marketing Chair will assist AOR staff in planning, developing and implementing a marketing strategy aligning with AOR's strategic goals, mission and vision. The Marketing Chair will collaborate with Conference Chair to support the annual conference.

These chairs shall be required to report to the general membership and the board of officers on committee activities.

7.13 Delegation and Change of Duties. In the event of absence or disability of any officer, the board may delegate, during such absence or disability, the powers and/or duties of such officer to any other officer.

7.14 Elimination of Liability of Officers. No officer of the corporation shall be personally liable to the corporation or its members for monetary damages for conduct as officer, except that this provision shall not eliminate or limit the liability of an officer for any act or omission occurring prior to the date of adoption of this Article and that this provision shall not eliminate or limit the liability of an officer for any act or omission occurring the liability of an officer for any act or omission occurring prior to the date of adoption of this Article and that this provision shall not eliminate or limit the liability of an officer for any act or omission occurring the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for any act or limit the liability of an officer for act or limit the liability of any act or limit the liabili

(a) any breach of the officer's duty of loyalty to the corporation or its members;

(b) acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;

(c) any distribution to members which is unlawful under the Oregon Business Corporation Act or successor statute;

(d) any transaction from which the officer derived an improper personal benefit.

No amendment to or repeal of this Article shall apply to or have any effect on the liability or alleged liability of any officer of the corporation for or with respect to any acts or omissions prior to such amendment or repeal.

ARTICLE VIII. Books, Records, Seal, and Audit

8.1 Inspection. The books, records, and papers of the association shall at all times during reasonable office hours, be subject to inspection by any voting member or officer of the association at the office of the association.

8.2 Association Seal. The association seal shall be circular in form and shall have inscribed thereon the name of the association, the state, and the year of association.

8.3 Review. There shall be an annual review of the association's financial controls and accounting records, as follows: the Chair shall appoint a financial review committee of at least two members to review the association's financial controls and accounting records by applying the agreed upon procedures as determined by the board of officers. The financial review committee shall issue a report regarding their findings and recommendations from the application of the agreed upon procedures. The current Treasurer shall not serve on the financial review committee, but shall be available for consultation. The financial review committee members shall be independent of the board of officers and the staff responsible for the maintenance of the accounting records. A special review or audit, performed by an independent certified public accountant in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, shall be made at any time, upon order of the board of officers or upon a majority vote of the voting members at any regular or special meeting.

8.4 Execution of Association Documents. When the execution of any instrument has been authorized by the board without specifying the executing officer, such instrument may be executed by any two of the following officers: the Chair, the Secretary, the Treasurer. The board of officers may, however, authorize any one of such officers to sign any such instrument for, and on behalf of, the association, and may designate officials or employees of the association other than those named above, to sign such instruments.

ARTICLE IX. Amendments

The bylaws may be altered, amended or repealed, and new bylaws may be adopted by a twothirds majority of the voting membership present at any regular or at any special meeting, if at least ten days' written notice is given of intent to so alter, amend, repeal, or adopt new bylaws at such meeting.

ARTICLE X. Indemnification The corporation shall indemnify to the fullest extent permitted by the Oregon Business Corporation Act any person who has been made, or is threatened to be made, a party to an action, suit, or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative, investigative, or otherwise (including an action, suit, or proceeding by or in the right of the corporation), by reason of the fact that the person is or was a director or officer of the corporation, or a fiduciary with respect to an employee benefit plan of the corporation, or serves or served at the request of the corporation as director, or as an officer, or as fiduciary of an employee benefit plan, or another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise.